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 UVM LEASE LAND - A BRIEF HISTORY 
 
 
In the late 1700's and early 1800's, when the towns in Vermont were 

being chartered, it was customary with the Wentworth Grants (named 

after the Governor of New Hampshire, Benning Wentworth) to reserve 

one or more of the following rights:  1. the first settled 

minister, 2. town school, 3. county grammar school, 4. Church of 

England, 5. Society for the Propagation of the Gospel in Foreign 

Parts, and 6. college.  It is through the college right that the 

Corporation of the University of Vermont acquired the majority of 

its so-called "lease land".  These public or "chartered" lands of 

the University are held by it in trust from the State of Vermont, 

to be used for educational purposes.  The State has ultimate 

ownership by virtue of having withheld, or reserved, the lands from 

the grants made to the original proprietors of the townships.  The 

University can exercise only so much control over the lands as is 

within the limits of the trust arrangement.  In the Corporation's 

charter of November 2, 1791, the legislature granted it the power 

to "take charge of, lease, rent, and improve to the best advantage, 

all such grants ...".  The Corporation was reformed in 1802, this 

time with power "to take charge of, lease, rent, and appropriate to 

the use and benefit of the University of Vermont ...".  The change 

in the language of the 1802 Act, with the legislature no longer 

insisting that the Corporation improve the lands under its control, 

illustrates how quickly and completely the concept of leasing the 

lands took hold, with the University thereby losing direct control 

over them.  In 1810, the Act of 1802 was repealed but a new act of 

incorporation resurrected its language; this time with the addition 

that the land was "to the use and benefit of said University 

forever."  The language remained unchanged in the 1865 Act which 

merged the University and the Agricultural College. 

 

The Corporation of the University of Vermont started issuing 

perpetual leases in the early 1800's for "as long as grass grows 

and water runs" for a nominal fee of between $0.04 to $0.18 per 
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acre.  Reserved in the lease was a timber reservation which usually 

ran between 15 and 25 acres per 100 acre lot in which no timber was 

to be cut.  Usually the original lease was for an entire lot with 

the lessee having the right to convey the lease in whole or in part 

at current fair market value, with the understanding that the new 

lessee was purchasing only a leasehold interest in the property and 

that the property was subject to an annual rental due and payable 

on or before 1 January for the ensuing year.  The Corporation, in 

its original lease, reserved the right to terminate the lease for 

nonpayment.  This has rarely been accomplished because the courts 

look in disfavor on the Corporation taking such action. 

 

About 1844, a generous benefactor by the name of Azarius Williams, 

donated his large land holding to the University.  This land was 

located, for the most part, in the towns of Concord and Jay.  Like 

the chartered land, his property, for the most part, was in the 

form of original town lots.  Consequently, the Corporation issued 

perpetual leases on the Azarius Williams land and added his gift to 

the "lease land" category. 

 

Owning lease land before 1969 was desirable because the land was 

not subject to taxation.  The owner only had to pay his annual rent 

to the University.  In 1969, the General Assembly made the land 

taxable with the amount of the annual rent being deductible from 

the town tax to avoid a double taxation situation. 

 

In 1970, the University had approximately 36,500 acres of land 

(both chartered and deeded) in the lease land category 

located in 89 towns in the northern half of the state 

with an annual rental of $4,100 spread among 445 

lessees.  Due to the ever increasing cost of 

administering the lease land account, plus the fact that 

the income was fixed under the terms of the original 
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leases issued in the early 1800's, the University began 

exploring the possibility of selling the lease land to 

the current lessees of record canceling the leases.  At 

the Trustees meeting of 18 August 1973, it was 

 RESOLVED, "that the oil and mineral rights of the 

lease land being sold, not be sold, but be retained by 

the University".  

The determination of the fee for selling of the lease land is based 

on $100.00 for the drawing of the deed, plus enough money to be 

placed in an escrow account to generate the annual rental of the 

lease being sold, at a rate of 0.045.  In 1990 persons affected by 

the oil, gas, and mineral rights reservation could exchange these 

reserve rights for a royalty rights reservation, so for some 

parcels there will have been issued both a quitclaim deed and a 

quitclaim deed and royalty agreement. The income derived from the 

sale of lease land is deposited in the Lease Land Endowment 

Account.  As of October 1993 the market value of the Lease Land 

Endowment account was $768,934. 

  

The 1994 Lease Land billing indicates that approximately 14,450 

acres still remain in the lease land category.  This land is 

located in 70 towns with an annual income of $1,745.92 and is 

spread among 357 parcels and 292 lessees.  Sales of the lease land 

have dropped sharply since 1976 and it is unlikely that we will 

experience a drastic reduction in the remaining lease land.  As of 

January, 1994, the University had sold 22,150 acres with a 

reduction in lease land rent of $2,277.16.  Of the quitclaim deeds 

that were issued those issued with royalty rights reserved totaled 

33 parcels for a total of 954 acres sold and a reduction in lease 

land rent of 110.15.   
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As of January 1994 the breakdown of the holdings of lease land is 

as follows:   

LEASE LAND CATEGORY  ACREAGE  ANNUAL RENT 

Chartered     9,944  $1,237.07 

Deeded     4,506  $  508.85 

TOTAL    14,450  $1,745.92 

 

The quitclaim deed and royalty agreements issued as of January 1994 

totaled 12 parcels for a total of 676 acres.  Since quitclaim deed 

and royalty agreements are issued as a replacement to the quitclaim 

deeds that reserved the oil, gas and mineral rights they do not 

constitute a loss of rental income.  When the University is 

notified of a change in ownership, the new lessee is given the 

opportunity of either purchasing the lease by quitclaim deed or to 

continue paying the annual rent.  Income derived from the lease 

land rental is credited to the General Fund as is the annual 

interest earned from the Lease Land Endowment Fund.   

 LEASE LAND INCOME FY '94 

Est. Endowment Income + $ + 30,195.19 

Annual Rental Income =  $    1,745.92 

Total Income         =  $   31,941.11 

 

 

 

By:  Harris G. Abbott, Manager - Land Records Office 

history.ll (ll#1) 
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